Form 10-300 (Rev. 6-72)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

| NATIONAL | REGISTE | ROF | HISTORIC | PLACES |
|----------|---------|------|----------|--------|
| INVEN | ITODY A | IOME | NATION E | 2014 |

| STATE: | |
|--------|------------------|
| | Vermont |
| COUNT | Y: |
| | Chittenden |
| | FOR NPS USE ONLY |
| NTRY | DATE |

| | INVENTOR | HOITAHIMOH - Y | FORM | | FOR NPS USI | enden EONLY | \dashv |
|-----------------|---|--|---------------------------|--|--|---------------------------------------|-----------------|
| | (Type all entries - complete applicable sections) | | i i | ENTRY DATE | | | |
| 17 | NAME | complete applicas | | 113) | | APR 1 4 1975 | |
| | COMMON: | | | | | | |
| | University Green | Historic Dis | trict | | · | | |
| 2. | LOCATION / | 11 × 11 × 11 × 11 | | 7 | | | |
| | STREET AND NUMBER: | | | | | | 7 |
| | see description, | Section 7 | | LCONGRESSION | AL DISTRICT: | | |
| | | • | | l . | | | |
| | Burlington | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | CODE | Vt. Dis | Crict | CODE | + |
| | Vermont | | 50 | CI | nittenden | 007 | \exists |
| 3. | CLASSIFICATION | | 1 | <u> </u> | 11000114011 | | |
| | CATEGORY (Check One) | OWNE | RSHIP | | STATUS | ACCESSIBLE TO THE PUBLIC | <u>c</u> |
| | District Building | Public Publ | ic Acquisit | ion: | ▼ Occupied | Yes: | |
| | Site Structure | Private | ☐ In Pro | | Unoccupied | Restricted Unrestricted | |
| | ☐ Object | ∏ Both | Being | Considered | Preservation work | Unrestricted No | |
| | PRESENT USE (Check One or M | ore as Appropriate) | | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | |
| | ☐ Agricultural 🔀 Go | overnment X Par | k | | Transportation | ☐ Comments | |
| | Commercial Inc | | D!J | _ | 101 45 14.1 | | |
| | - Commercial | dustrial X Pri | vale Kesla | ence | Other (Specify) | | - |
| | X Educational X Mi | litary 🕱 Rel | igious | ence | Uther (Specify) | | - |
| 50000000 | ☑ Educational ☑ Mi ☑ Entertainment ☐ Mu | litary 🕱 Rel | igious | ence | Other (Specify) | | - |
| 4. | ⊠ Educational | litary 🕱 Rel | igious | ence | Utner (Specify) | | - |
| 4 | ⊠ Educational | litary 🕱 Rel | igious entific | ersity of | f Vt., Medic | eal Center | Verm |
| 4 | Educational Mi Entertainment Mu OWNER OF PROPERTY OWNER'S NAME: Multiple Ownersh STREET AND NUMBER: | litary ▼ Rel | igious entific | ersity of | | eal Center | Vermor |
| 4 | ⊠ Educational | litary ▼ Rel | igious entific | ersity of | f Vt., Medic | eal Center | Vermont |
| 4 | Educational Mi Entertainment Mu OWNER OF PROPERTY OWNER'S NAME: Multiple ownersh STREET AND NUMBER: City of Burlingt City or town: | litary ▼ Rel | igious entific | ersity of | f Vt., Medic | ont | Vermont |
| | Educational Mi Entertainment Mu OWNER OF PROPERTY OWNER'S NAME: Multiple Ownersh STREET AND NUMBER: City of Burlingt City or Town: Burlington LOCATION OF LEGAL DESC | in primarily on | igious entific | ersity of | f Vt., Medic | ont | ζr |
| | Educational Mi Entertainment Mu OWNER OF PROPERTY OWNER'S NAME: Multiple Ownersh STREET AND NUMBER: City of Burlingt City or TOWN: Burlington LOCATION OF LEGAL DESC | in Relation RIPTION | igious entific | ersity of | f Vt., Medic | ont | - 0 |
| | Educational Mi Entertainment Mu OWNER OF PROPERTY OWNER'S NAME: Multiple Ownersh STREET AND NUMBER: City of Burlingt City or Town: Burlington LOCATION OF LEGAL DESC | in Relation RIPTION | igious entific | ersity of | f Vt., Medic | ont | - 0 |
| | Educational Mi Entertainment Mu OWNER OF PROPERTY OWNER'S NAME: Multiple ownersh STREET AND NUMBER: City of Burlingt City or Town: Burlington LOCATION OF LEGAL DESC COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF C Burlington City STREET AND NUMBER: | in Relation RIPTION | igious entific | ersity of | f Vt., Medic | ont | - 0 |
| | Educational Mi Entertainment Mu OWNER OF PROPERTY OWNER'S NAME: Multiple ownersh STREET AND NUMBER: City of Burlingt City or Town: Burlington LOCATION OF LEGAL DESC COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF E Burlington City | in Relation RIPTION | igious entific | ersity of | f Vt., Medic | ont | chittend |
| | Educational Mi Entertainment Mu OWNER OF PROPERTY OWNER'S NAME: Multiple ownersh STREET AND NUMBER: City of Burlingt City or Town: Burlington LOCATION OF LEGAL DESC COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF E Burlington City STREET AND NUMBER: Church Street | in Relation RIPTION | igious entific | ersity of Hospit | f Vt., Medic | ont code 50 | - 0 |
| 5. | Educational Mi Entertainment Mu OWNER OF PROPERTY OWNER'S NAME: Multiple OWNER'S NAME: City of Burlingt City of Burlingt City or Town: Burlington LOCATION OF LEGAL DESC COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF C Burlington City STREET AND NUMBER: Church Street CITY OR TOWN: Burlington | ip, primarily on RIPTION DEEDS. ETC: | igious entific | ersity of Hospit | f Vt., Medic | ont code 50 | t ¢hittend |
| 5. | Educational Mi Entertainment Mu OWNER OF PROPERTY OWNER'S NAME: Multiple ownersh STREET AND NUMBER: City of Burlingt City or Town: Burlington LOCATION OF LEGAL DESC COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF C Burlington City STREET AND NUMBER: Church Street CITY OR TOWN: Burlington REPRESENTATION IN EXIST | ip, primarily on RIPTION DEEDS. ETC: | igious entific | ersity of Hospit | f Vt., Medicate of Vermont | CODE CODE | chittenden |
| 5. | Educational Mi Entertainment Mu OWNER OF PROPERTY OWNER'S NAME: Multiple ownersh STREET AND NUMBER: City of Burlingt City or Town: Burlington LOCATION OF LEGAL DESC COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF C Burlington City STREET AND NUMBER: Church Street CITY OR TOWN: Burlington REPRESENTATION IN EXIST | ip, primarily on RIPTION DEEDS. ETC: Hall | igious entific Univ | ersity of Hospital Venture Ven | f Vt., Medicatel of Vermont | CODE CODE | chittenden |
| 5. | Educational Mi Entertainment Mu OWNER OF PROPERTY OWNER'S NAME: Multiple ownersh STREET AND NUMBER: City of Burlingt City or Town: Burlington LOCATION OF LEGAL DESC COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF C Burlington City STREET AND NUMBER: Church Street CITY OR TOWN: Burlington REPRESENTATION IN EXIST TITLE OF SURVEY: Vermont Historic | ing surveys Sites and St | igious entific Univ | ersity of Hospital Venture Ven | f Vt., Medicate of Vermont | code 50 | chittenden |
| 5. | Educational Mi Entertainment Mu OWNER OF PROPERTY OWNER'S NAME: Multiple ownersh STREET AND NUMBER: City of Burlingt City or Town: Burlington LOCATION OF LEGAL DESC COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF C Burlington City STREET AND NUMBER: Church Street CITY OR TOWN: Burlington REPRESENTATION IN EXIST TITLE OF SURVEY: Vermont Historic | ip, primarily on RIPTION DEEDS, ETC: Hall ING SURVEYS Sites and St 3 | Univ | ersity of Hospital Venture Ven | ermont Proposition of Vermont Proposition of Vermont | code 50 | chittenden |
| 5. | Educational Mi Entertainment Mu OWNER OF PROPERTY OWNER'S NAME: Multiple ownersh STREET AND NUMBER: City of Burlingt City of Burlingt City or Town: Burlington LOCATION OF LEGAL DESC COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF E Burlington City STREET AND NUMBER: Church Street CITY OR TOWN: Burlington REPRESENTATION IN EXIST TITLE OF SURVEY: Vermont Historic DATE OF SURVEY: 197 | ip, primarily on RIPTION DEEDS. ETC: Hall ING SURVEYS Sites and St 3 CORDS: | Univ | ersity of Hospital Venture Ven | f Vt., Medicate of Vermont | code 50 | chittenden 1975 |
| 5 | Educational Multiple Multiple Ownersh Street and Number: City of Burlingt City of LEGAL DESC COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF C Burlington City STREET AND NUMBER: Church Street City or Town: Burlington REPRESENTATION IN EXIST TITLE OF SURVEY: Vermont Historic DATE OF SURVEY: Vermont Division STREET AND NUMBER: Pavilion Buildin | ip, primarily on RIPTION DEEDS, ETC: Hall ING SURVEYS Sites and St 3 CORDS: of Historic | Univ | ersity of Hospital STATE: Veres Surve | ermont Proposition of Vermont Proposition of Vermont | code 50 | chittenden 1975 |
| 5 | Educational Mu Entertainment Mu OWNER OF PROPERTY OWNER'S NAME: Multiple ownersh STREET AND NUMBER: City of Burlingt City or Town: Burlington LOCATION OF LEGAL DESC COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF E Burlington City STREET AND NUMBER: Church Street CITY OR TOWN: Burlington REPRESENTATION IN EXIST TITLE OF SURVEY: Vermont Historic DATE OF SURVEY: Vermont Division STREET AND NUMBER: | ip, primarily on RIPTION DEEDS, ETC: Hall ING SURVEYS Sites and St 3 CORDS: of Historic | Univ | ersity of Hospital Venture Ven | ermont Proposition of Vermont Proposition of Vermont | code 50 | nont Chittenden |

| L | 4 | - |
|---|----|---|
| ٠ | • | • |
| | | |
| ſ | | |
| ı | ı | 1 |
| | | |
| | | |
| ٢ | 7 | ١ |
| • | • | ٠ |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| _ | _ | |
| | | |
| | | |
| 2 | 2 | - |
| - | _ | - |
| | | |
| | | _ |
| t | , | 1 |
| | | |
| | | |
| - | | ł |
| | | ۰ |
| | | |
| _ | | |
| 7 | ١, | J |
| | | |
| | | |
| C | - | - |
| • | • | • |
| | | |
| (| _ | |
| ſ | | 1 |
| - | | • |
| | | |
| _ | _ | 1 |
| _ | _ | ı |
| | | |
| _ | | |
| _ | _ | • |
| | | |
| C | _ | |
| C | | , |
| _ | _ | |
| | | |
| 7 | 7 | • |
| - | - | • |
| | | |
| | _ | |
| L | • | ı |
| | | |
| | | |

| | DESCRIPTION | | | | | | | |
|-----|-------------|-------------|-----------|-------------|--------------|---------|-----------------|--|
| Ī | | | | | (Check One) | | | |
| - | CONDITION | ☐ Excellent | ₩ Good | ☐ Fair | Deteriorated | Ruins | Unexposed | |
| 1 | CONDITION | | (Check Or | 1e) | | (Che | ck One) | |
| 1 | | ▼ Altere | ·d | ☐ Unaltered | | 🔀 Moved | 🔯 Original Site | |
| - 1 | | | | | | | | |

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Boundary Description

Beginning at a point A at the intersection of the center line of pavement of Pearl Street and Williams Street; thence proceeding in a southerly direction along the center line of pavement of South Williams Street to a point B at the intersection of the center line of pavement of Main Street; thence proceeding in a westerly direction along the center line of pavement of Main Street for a distance of 120 feet more or less to a point C located in the center line of pavement, said point is also the extension in a northerly direction of the west property line of land owned by the University of Vermont and known as "Grass Mount" and designated as Number 411 Main Street; thence proceeding in a southerly direction for a distance of 474 feet more or less along the westerly property line of land owned by the University of Vermont as above described to a point D at the southwest corner; thence proceeding in an easterly direction for a distance of 276 feet more or less along the southerly property line of land owned by the University of Vermont as above described and extended easterly to a point E located in the center line of pavement of Summit Street; thence proceeding in a northerly direction for a distance of 292 feet along the center line of pavement of Summit Street to a point F; thence proceeding in an easterly direction for a distance of 415 feet more or less to a point G located in the westerly right of way line of South Prospect Street, said point is located 119.57 feet southerly of the intersection of southerly right of way line of Main Street and the westerly right of way line of South Prospect Street and is designated as Monument Number 88 on the University of Vermont coordinate system; thence proceeding in an easterly direction across South Prospect Street for a distance of 418 feet more or less to a point H located in the westerly property line of land owned by the City of Burlington, said point is located 140 feet southerly of the southerly right of way line of Main Street as measured in the westerly property line of land owned by the City of Burlington; thence proceeding in a southerly direction for a distance of 619 feet more or less along the westerly property line of land owned by the City of Burlington to a point I at the southwest corner of land owned by the City of Burlington; thence proceeding in an easterly direction for a distance of 110 feet more or less along the southerly property line of land owned by the City of Burlington to a point J at the southeast corner of land owned by the City of Burlington; thence proceeding in a northeasterly direction for a distance of 653 feet more or less along the easterly property line of land owned by the City of Burlington and the easterly property line extended in a northeasterly direction to a point K in the center line of pavement of Main Street; thence proceeding in a northwesterly direction for a distance of 243 feet more or less

(continued on Continuation Sheet #1)

1107 1 1791 NATIONAL

Section 7

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

(Continuation Sheet) #

| STATE | |
|-----------------|------|
| Vermont | |
| COUNTY | |
| Chittende | en |
| FOR NPS USE ONL | Υ |
| ENTRY NUMBER | DATE |
| IPR 14 | 1975 |

to a point L in the center line of pavement of Main Street; thence proceeding in a northerly direction in a line parallel to and 20 feet easterly of the east wall of Morrill Hall for a distance of 415 feet more or less to a point M located 20 feet southerly of the south wall of Royall Tyler Theatre Building; thence proceeding in an easterly direction in a line parallel to and 20 feet southerly of the south wall of Royall Tyler Theatre for a distance of 243 feet more or less to a point N; thence proceeding in a northerly direction in a line parallel to and 20 feet easterly of the east wall of Royall Tyler Theatre for a distance of 142 feet to a point 0; thence proceeding in a westerly direction in a line parallel to and 20 feet northerly of the north wall of Royall Tyler Theatre for a distance of 300 feet to a point P located 40 feet easterly of the east wall of the Old Mill Building; thence proceeding in a northerly direction in a line parallel to and 40 feet easterly of the east wall of the Old Mill Building for a distance of 260 feet more or less to a point Q; thence proceeding in an easterly direction for a distance of 55 feet more or less to a point R; thence proceeding in a northerly direction in a line parallel to and 25 feet easterly of the east wall of the Williams Science Building for a distance of 470 feet more or less to a point S located 22 feet northerly of the north wall of Votey Engineering Building extended westerly; thence proceeding in an easterly direction in a line parallel to and 22 feet northerly of the north wall of Votey Engineering Building for a distance of 120 feet more or less to a point T; thence proceeding in a northerly direction for a distance of 370 feet more or less to a point U located in the center line of pavement of Colchester Avenue; thence proceeding in a westerly direction along the center line of pavement of Colchester Avenue for a distance of 105 feet more or less to a point V located at the intersection of the center line of pavement of Mansfield Avenue; thence proceeding in a northerly direction along the center line of pavement of Mansfield Avenue for a distance of 185 feet more or less to a point W; thence turning an angle of 90° and proceeding in a westerly direction for a distance of 250 feet more or less to a point X; thence proceeding in a northwesterly direction for a distance of 283 feet more or less to a point Y located in the northerly right of way line of North Prospect Street, said point is designated as Monument Number 41 on the University of Vermont coordinate system; thence proceeding in a southwesterly direction across North Prospect Street for a distance of 426 feet more or less to a point Z; thence proceeding in a southerly direction for a distance of 135 feet more or less to a point AA located in the center line of pavement of Pearl Street; thence proceeding in a westerly direction for a distance of 278 feet more or less along the center line of pavement of Pearl Street to the point of beginning.

(continued on Continuation Sheet #2)

FORM 10-3000 (July 1969) 1107 1 1771 NATIONAL REGISTER

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

(Continuation Sheet) #2

| STATE | |
|-----------------|------|
| Vermont | |
| COUNTY | |
| Chittende | n |
| FOR NPS USE ONL | Y |
| ENTRY NUMBER | DATE |
| 1.25 1 / 1975 | |

Section 7
(Number all entries)

Physical Description

The University of Vermont Green is a long, slightly irregular rectangle of a park at the center of the main campus. Four roads form its boundaries: two east/west arteries, Colchester (Pearl) and Main Streets; and two north/south arteries, South Prospect and University Place. The university and city buildings which line these streets face the green from all four sides. These structures and the park they surround comprise the University Green Historic District.

The Green is treed and crisscrossed by paths, many of which radiate from the large fountain and pool located at its center. Benches and statues are scattered across its rolling surface. Because its eastern side is considerably higher than the western side, the park provides a dramatic topographic pedestal for the buildings along University Place. As a group, these buildings sitting along this rise represent the most outstanding architecture at the University. Although they range in date from 1825 to 1926 and represent a variety of types of institutional buildings, they are similar enough in design, scale, placement, materials and detailing to form a highly coherent group. At the eastern end of this group, on the corner of University Place and Main Street, Morrill Hall relates visually to Pomeroy Hall which faces the Green from Main Street. This pair serves to define the corner of the Green.

A second group of buildings similar in style, form, scale, placement and fabric is formed by the domestic structures west of Pomeroy Hall along Main, around the corner along South Prospect as far as Alumni House and along the entire length of South Williams Street which runs parallel to and west of South Prospect.

The third visual unit consists of the buildings along South Prospect north of Alumni, around the corner to Colchester (Pearl). Three large, twentieth century institutional buildings - Waterman, The Baird Institute of the DeGoesbriand Hospital and John Dewey Hall - dominate the group but are interspersed with a number of buildings on a domestic scale.

These three visual groups of buildings around the perimeter of the Green work together to define it as a distinct area. Similarly, the series of paths crossing the Green serve, both visually and physically to relate structures across the park from each other.

(continued on Continuation Sheet #3)



UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

(Continuation Sheet) #

| Vermont | |
|-----------------|------|
| COUNTY | |
| Chittende | n |
| FOR NPS USE ONL | Y |
| ENTRY NUMBER | DATE |
| JPR 14 | 1973 |

(Number all entries)

Hence, the University of Vermont Green is the site of a number of buildings which are highly distinctive architecturally and which set up a number of highly complex visual and stylistic relationships among themselves.

Group I: Ira Allen Chapel stands at the northeast corner of the Green on University Place. Its plan takes the form of a Latin cross, 50 feet by 135 feet, with 46 feet wide transepts extending 20 feet 6 inches on either side of the main body. The walls of the building, constructed of local brick laid in English bond, stand 40 feet. The chapel's most impressive facade - a full temple gable front, six columns wide with full entablature and pediment - faces the Green. A low, hexagonal dome which is capped with a gilded lantern surmounts the crossing. A bell tower rises 170 feet from the northwest corner of the intersecting nave and transept. Eight foot clock faces are set into each of the four sides of the tower just below the bell. At night, the beacon flashing from the tower's peak provides a landmark for those approaching Burlington via road or Lake Champlain.

The structure's detailing and its materials - brick with woodwork painted white - are typical of the Georgian Revival work of the firm of McKim, Meade and White of New York at the date of its construction, 1926.

Behind the chapel to the northwest, facing Colchester Avenue (Pearl) is a two-and-a-half story rough stone structure known as Mansfield House. Designed and built as a residence for professors in 1891, the structure has an irregular floor plan and is interesting for its combination of materials - stone and the stucco and wood of half timbering.

Behind the chapel to the west is the Old Art Building. Originally this structure was a two story brick block measuring 40 by 60 feet. As the University's library and second major liberal arts building, it was given a prominent location facing the Green on University Place when it was erected in 1862. Eleven years later a third story and mansard roof were added. In 1895 the structure was moved to its present location so that Williams Science Hall could be constructed on its site. In the move the building was turned 90 degrees so that it now faces south instead of west. A few years later a two story wing was added to the east side and a year later Henry LeGrand Cannon had the single story wing added to the west wall to house the collection he was bequesting to the University museum. When, in 1942, the building became the studio art center, skylights were installed in the roof. The structure has retained its particularly fine cast iron hoodmoulds.

(continued on Continuation Sheet #4)

Form 10-3009 []

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

MAL INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

(Continuation Sheet) # 15

| STATE | |
|-----------------|------|
| Vermont | |
| COUNTY | |
| Chittende | en |
| FOR NPS USE ONL | Υ |
| ENTRY NUMBER | DATE |
| APR 1 & 1975 | |

Section 7

NATIONAL REGISTER

South of the chapel and next in the line of buildings facing the Green from University Place is <u>Billings</u>. An imposing structure of rusticated Longmeadow sandstone set in regular ashlar with a slate roof, Billings exemplifies the style named for its architect, "Richardsonian Romanesque." H. H. Richardson designed this structure and its furnishings between 1883 and 1885. It was named in honor of its donor, Frederick Billings.

The main, west, portal is dominated by an arched entranceway set within a gable and flanked by two corner towers. The northern tower is larger in scale and height than the southern and has an open belfry. From the southwest corner of this porch a wing extends southward and intersects with a large polygonal apse which was once the library's main reading room. Similarly, a rectangular wing extends northward from the northwest corner of the porch. Originally, this wing was shorter, but in 1889 it was extended 25 feet to the north. A 40 foot square room was added to the rear of the structure during the same building program.

Billings is an outstanding building in its interior and exterior detailing and in its superb spacial relationships. Each room of the structure rises a full two stories at the center with balconies surrounding the sides. An almost continuous band of clerestory windows provides light for these balconies and creates the illusion of lightening the roof. The result of this design is the sensation that great volumes of space cluster around the central space of the building, the "living" or entrance hall. Both the organization of space and this room with its monumental carved and hooded fireplace and inglenooks opposite the front door and its large, open entranceways into the subsidiary rooms are typical of architectural design in the 1880's. The staircase which one would expect to find in the living hall of this type of plan was originally visible through a series of large stepped arches on the northwest wall of the room. These open arches were later plastered over.

In 1961 the library volumes were moved to a new building and Billings became the University's student center. The basement of the building was remodeled in 1971 by Burlington Associates.

The next building to the south along University Place is Williams Science Hall. Its plan is a cruciform with the front (west) wing so shortened that it appears to be no more than a slightly projecting pavilion. On this plan a seventeen bay, three-and-a-half story brick elevation rises 90 feet from a rusticated granite foundation. The fenestration changes at each level. The basement windows take the form of paired narrow rectangles; on the first floor level two smaller windows surmount a pair identical to those in the basement; the second floor windows have arched tops, stone

(continued on Continuation Sheet #5)

MATIONAL

REGISTER

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

1109 1 TONATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

(Continuation Sheet)

| [Vermont | 5 |
|----------------|------|
| COUNTY | |
| Chitter | nden |
| FOR NPS USE ON | LY |
| ENTRY NUMBER | DATE |
| JPR 1 4 1975 | |

STATE

Section 7 (Number all entries)

tracery and are set within an arcade; while the third floor windows are set within an intertwining arcade, supported by ornamental terra cotta columns.

The central pavilion of the building is dominated by two arches: the large entrance arch outlined by ornate archivolts rises to the height of the first story; a larger, broader arch encloses the three central bays and almost fills the gables. Between these two arches are three stories of windows corresponding in form to the windows on the main block of the building. The pavilion is abundantly decorated with terra cotta ornament including three medallions containing relief portraits of three men of American Science - Agassiz, Morse and Henry.

Eight dormers at two levels break the outline of the steeply pitched slate roof. The ridge line of the roof is crowned by a cupola at the mid point of each of the three wings.

Although Williams Science Hall is considerably larger than Billings, the greater delicacy of Williams' "Gothic" detail tends to counter act the difference. Furthermore, in terms of overall design, the details of the two buildings - the bold entrance arches, the arcaded bands of windows - aid in relating the two buildings. relationship between Williams and its neighbors, Billings and the Old Mill, was hardly accidental. The administration, wishing to create a "true University row," selected this site for the new structure and had the Old Art Building moved to fulfill the plan.

Williams Science Hall was designed by Wilson Bros. and Co., Civil Engineers and Architects of Philadelphia in 1894 and was erected by a Philadelphia construction firm, Stacy, Reeves and Sons. Wilson Bros., who also designed the Masonic Temple in Burlington, based Williams "on broad principle" on Ruskin's design for the Oxford Museum in London.

South of Williams stands the Old Mill. The long horizontal facade of this three-and-a-half story brick building is broken by three large projecting, gabled pavilions - one at the center and one at either end. The recessed arched panels, three bays wide and four stories high, contained in each pavilion facade as well as the building's fabric relate it directly to Williams Science Hall. These pavilion arches are also related to the smaller arched main doorways surmounted by gables at Williams, Billings and the Old Mill's neighbor to the south, the Old Gym.

(continued on Continuation Sheet #6)

| 10 TIBILID | |
|--------------------------------|-----------|
| Form 10-3000 ECEIVEN DIEFED ST | |
| Low in and Traine II number of | A I E S D |
| (July 1969) | NATIO |

NATIONAL

REGISTER

Section 7

ED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES

| Continuation | Sheet) | #6 |
|--------------|--------|----|
|--------------|--------|----|

| STATE | |
|-----------------|------|
| Vermont | |
| COUNTY | |
| Chitten | den |
| FOR NPS USE ONL | Υ |
| ENTRY NUMBER | DATE |
| Sept A F gele | |

The central pavilion is slightly taller than the two end ones. Its stain glass windows are elongated and vertically span more than one floor. The increased space between the top of the arch and the peak of the gable allows room for a group of three arched windows. Directly above this middle pavilion, at the center of the slate roof, sites an open belfry topped by a steeple. The two flanking pavilions are shorter, narrower and shallower but similar in overall design.

As it appears today the Old Mill is the product of many remodelings. The original Old Mill was erected on this site in 1801-2 through donations by local citizens. It was the University's first academic building. When it was destroyed by fire in 1824, a complex of three brick structures built on line with one another, seven to twelve feet apart was erected. The gaps between the buildings were designed as security against losing the entire University plant to fire. A gilded dome crowned the central building. In 1846 the gaps were filled in to form the bays that now appear as the pavilions. In 1881 the dome was removed and a year later the entire building was reconstructed on the plans of J.J.R. Randall of Rutland. This building program included: the addition of "several stories...front wall broken up by projections at either end, chapel extended both front and rear...blank walls at the north and south side pierced by windows and doors." Although sections of the building had to be rebuilt after a fire in 1918, and the interior has been renovated a number of times since the 1882-3 remodeling, the Old Mill owes its present appearance to that building program.

The "college row" on the eastern side of the green can be viewed as an ordered group of six paired buildings with the two most closely related structures - Williams Science Hall and the Old Mill - serving as the central pair. Their flanking structures - Billings and the Old Gym - form the second pair. Both Billings and the Old Gym are representative of 19th century Romanesque; both facades are dominated by large arched doorways surmounted by a row of five windows within a gable; both are constructed on similar scales with similar materials. However, while the subsidiary spaces at Billings are wings set at right angles to the main section of the building, those at the Old Gym take the form of single story aisles with clerestories and hence refer to medieval Tuscan basilicas. The ornamented brickwork of the arched entranceway is set into the wall, recessed behind this principal arch.

The structure was erected in stone on a brick and concrete foundation in 1901. Andrews, Jacques and Rantoul were the architects. Originally, the building measured 99 by 140 feet. In 1915 A.L. Lawrence designed the 100 by 120 foot extension at the east end of the building. This addition, with its glass roof and dirt floor, was used as a drill hall and indoor cage.

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

201 1 MATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

NATIONAL REGISTER Section 7/

(Continuation Sheet)

| STATE Vermont | |
|---------------|----------|
| Chittenden | |
| | USE ONLY |
| ENTRY NUMB | ER DATE |
| JPR 14 | 13/5 |

(Number all privies) The building's strange location, out of line with the rest of the buildings along University Place, is explained by the fact that the University did not own the land to the south at that time. fact, in order to have the building face west as its neighbors do,

it was necessary to purchase a small strip of the adjacent corner

lot.

From its construction in 1901 until 1927, when the city erected Memorial Auditorium, the building played a dual role as a University and civic cultural center. It was the scene of University convocations, public concerts, balls, plays and the home of the Burlington Symphony Orchestra. When the University built a new gym in 1963, the building was remodeled to accommodate the ROTC program and various offices. In 1973-74 the interior was again reworked on the plan of Burlington Associates to serve as theatre.

While the four central buildings within "college row" can be easily sorted into visually related pairs, Morrill Hall relates to the Chapel only through the classical details of the upper two floors and the central projecting, gabled pavilion. Morrill is constructed on a concrete and random ashlar foundation. Its main block extends three bays to either side of the central pavilion. The first flodr is architecturally treated as a podium and is articulated by six projecting bands of five bricks each. From this base rise two stories of brick articulated at the corners in the form of broad pilasters and above the third floor windows in the form of a narrow cornice. The hip roof with flared eaves is tiled.

Morrill Hall was erected 1904-7 on the designs of a New York architect, C. W. Buckham, and named in honor of Justin Smith Morrill, author of the Land Grant College Act.

The facade of Morrill Hall is not precisely on line with the other major structures along University Row. Rather, it faces slightly toward the south and opens the corner of the Green area to visually include the City of Burlington's Main Street Pumping Station. is a small, one story brick structure on a stone foundation. plan, its basic unit is a rectangle with a square tower breaking off the east wall and an ell breaking off the south wall.

In elevation, the Main Street facade of the principle rectangular unit is pierced by a door, slightly to the east of center; by a pair of windows in the shape of a quarter oval to either side of the door; and by a third small window slightly to the west of center. The bold design of the fenestration and the unusual brick work which emphasizes it is the building's most distinctive feature. A projecting course of brick rises in a semi-circular arch from the

(continued on Continuation Sheet #8)

Form 10-3000
[Ugly 1969] 274
NATIONAL
REGISTER

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

(Continuation Sheet) #

| STATE | - |
|-----------------|-----------|
| Vermont | |
| COUNTY | |
| Chittende | en |
| FOR NPS USE ONL | Y |
| ENTRY NUMBER | DATE |
| PR 1 4 19 | 75 |

Section 7
(Number all entries)

outer lower corner of each of the two quarter oval windows flanking the door. At the upper inside corners of the two windows, the brick course drops directly downward, continues to outline the windows for a short distance; then each side turns a right angle toward the door and moves horizontally to the door frame, turns a right angle upward and outlines the door until the two sides of the course meet above the door in an arch. The overall shape which the brick course conveys is an elaborated half circle. A similar, unbroken half circle is found in the brick course around the triple windows on the west side of the building. This unit is capped by a slate roof with flared gables.

The tower rises two stories. Its Main Street facade is pierced by a centrally placed door with a semi-circular light. A pent roof encompasses the tower between its first and second floors at the cornice level of the main structure. On the second story, in a verticle line with the door, is a round window elaborated with the same type of brickwork that surrounds the main door and windows. A sharply pointed roof of scalloped slate caps the tower.

The pump house was erected by the city when the Main Street Reservoir opened in 1867.

West of the Pump House on Main, facing the Green is <u>Pomeroy Hall</u>. The essentially square form of this four story brick structure is broken by a projecting central pavilion. This pavilion is formed by a square stairtower. Visually, it is dominated by the vertical column of door and window openings: the lines of the first floor door with its segmental arch are continued in the elongated two-and-a-half story window with a semi-circular top. This column is set within a recessed panel of the same configuration which is, in turn, set within a recessed rectangular panel almost as large as the facade of the structure.

A single bay of windows is set to either side of the stairtower. These windows decrease in height at each floor level. A cornice with sawtooth corbelling along its lower edge runs around the entire building, interrupted only by the corner pilasters of the stairtower, the fourth floor windows and the exterior chimney on the west side of the structure. Three ells, each one story shorter than the other, have been added on the rear of the building.

As the second oldest building constructed specifically for the University, Pomeroy's history has been as uneven as it is long. When it was built by "public spirited" Burlingtonians as the medical college in 1829, it was only two stories. The water cures and health fads of the 1830's and 1840's caused the medical school to go bankrupt and close in 1836. Physics and chemistry classes

(continued on Continuation Sheet #9)

NATIONAL

REGISTER

Section_7 (Number all entries)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

109 1 1374 NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES **INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM**

(Continuation Sheet) #9

| STATE | |
|-----------------|------|
| Vermont | |
| COUNTY | |
| Chittenden | |
| FOR NPS USE ONL | Υ |
| ENTRY NUMBER | DATE |
| #PR 1 4 1978 | |

took over the building until 1853 when classes in medicine resumed. Five years later the third floor, the amphitheatre, the stairtower with a cupola and the three story brick ell were added. The second ell was added in 1870. In 1887 the structure was reassigned as an experimental agricultural station and within two years was renovated: the amphitheatre was removed, the third floor divided into two floors. With the completion of Morrill Hall the experimental station moved out and the building was abandoned for six years. It was reinhabited and a third ell was added in 1920. Five years later the cupola was removed and the interior remodeled. The interior has seen a number of updatings and new inhabitants in the last twenty years.

Pomeroy's neighbors to the west and northwest around Group II: the Green represent various phases of 19th century domestic archi-Immediately to the west is 481 Main Street (presently the Classics, Philosophy and Religion Building). The front elevation of this two-and-a-half story structure is dominated by a tall tower on the northwest with an onion dome. This bold form is balanced by the northeast side of the front elevation which projects toward the Green and which contains a large, semicircular bay window surmounted by a single central window on the second floor and a dormer on the third. The first floor of the structure consists of irregularly laid, rusticated sandstone; the remainder of the building is sheathed in half timbering. A shingled roof flows continuously over the entire irregular surface of the roof area. Its planes are interrupted by a number of interior chimneys and dormers.

This building's neighbor to the west, 479 Main Street, is sufficiently similar in scale, materials and design to indicate that the two structures were designed as a pair. Like 481, 479 Main is constructed of rusticated sandstone on the first floor, wood on the second and has a shingled roof. While 481 had a gabled projection on the eastern corner of the northern facade, 479 has a similar projection on the western corner. In 479, the projection is balanced by a boldly arched entranceway emphasized by employing darker stone. On the second floor, directly above this arch, is a gable with an arched ornamental truss and pendant.

Both buildings were designed for the University by a Philadelphian architect in 1890 and built on land and with funds donated by J.H Allen House, to the west of 479 Main, on the southeast corner of Main and South Prospect, was built as a home by a Mr. Boardman about 1815. At some time before 1833, it served as a University common. Not long afterwards, it passed back into private hands and wasn't reacquired by the University until the 20th century.

(continued on Continuation Sheet #10)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

MATIONAL REGISTER

1101 1 MATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

| (Continuation | Sheet) | #10 |
|---------------|--------|-----|
| (Continuation | Sneet) | #10 |

| STATE | |
|------------------------|------|
| Vermont | |
| COUNTY | |
| Chittend | en |
| FOR NPS USE ONL | Υ |
| ENTRY NUMBER | DATE |
| 11637 7 12 12 12 12 12 | |

Section 7 (Number all entries)

Originally, this two-and-a-half story, five bay wide, frame house was a simple rectangle capped by a hip roof. During a late 19th or early 20th century remodeling, a bay window was added to the northwest corner, and a large porch was built onto the east. A pair of dormers now break the simple line of the roof. Recently the building was sheathed with aluminum siding.

Across the street from Allen House, on the southwest corner of South Prospect and Main stands "Bittersweet?" The main block of "Bittersweet" is a two-and-a-half storied, three bay structure with a stone foundation and a gable roof made of slate. A single interior end chimney on the south pierces the roof. From the southern end of this block stretches a one-and-a-half story wooden recessed wing with an ell.

The facade of the structure is very simple: a one story, one bay, entrance porch with a pediment resting on columns and a bay window at the south corner of the main portion of the structure ornament the facade of the main block. A one story wooden porch fills the intersection of the main section and the wing. Two dormers break out from the roof above this wing. At the rear of the building there is a two story wooden porch.

The building was constructed in the early 19th century as a home and trading post for Thaddeus Tuttle. During the 1940's and 1950's it was the home of writer Margaret L.H. Smith who moved the "Bittersweet" plaque from her Spear Street farmhouse (no longer standing) and mounted it on the front of this structure. Today, the building serves as headquarters for the Environmental Studies Program.

Across Main Street from "Bittersweet" on the northwest corner is Wheeler House. Together these two structures define the corner of the Green. A two story brick structure, the main body is a cube measuring three bays on every side except the north where a long, two story ell extends. A hip roof, pierced by two interior chimneys and topped with a balustraded deck caps the building's geometric form.

The principle facade (southern) of Wheeler House is distinguished by a handsome porch. Enclosing the central doorway, this porch consists of elegantly proportioned columns with Corinthian capitals supporting a full entablature. The door itself is tall and surrounded by side and transom lights. A second, one story wooden porch has been added to the western end of the structure.

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

| STATE Vermont | |
|-----------------|------|
| COUNTY | |
| Chittenden | |
| FOR NPS USE ONL | Υ |
| ENTRY NUMBER | DATE |
| ABD 1 4 19/5 | |

Section 7

(Continuation Sheet)

#11

(Number all entries)

When Wheeler House was designed by Ammi Young in 1844 it was intended to serve both as a private residence for the president of the University and as a residence with meeting rooms for students. In 1944 the building was acquired from the Wheeler family for a University infirmary.

The Counseling and Testing Service building stands to the southwest of Wheeler House on Main Street but fronts on South Williams Street. A two-and-a-half story, gable end front, brick building with ells, it measures three bays across its principle facade. The structure's form and details - the door with its side and fan lights surmounted by a full entablature, the granite window sills and the full height corner pilasters - identify it as Greek Revival.

The Counseling and Testing Service building is the earliest of the fine group of 19th and early 20th century domestic structures along South Williams between Main and Colchester (Pearl) Streets. Together these two blocks of buildings represent a wide sampling of the directions domestic buildings took during the period. Most of the structures on the eastern side of the street are now University buildings. Those on the western side are fraternities or privately All have maintained the appearance, scale and setting of private homes.

Alumni House, north of Wheeler House and facing South Prospect forms the northern boundary of the group of predominantly domestid structures. This two-and-a-half story, brick, neo-Colonial home built in 1895 was purchased by the University in the 1950's.

The structure sits on a random ashlar foundation with a granite water table. Its brick is laid in running bond with a more elaborate pattern in the area of the windows. The cornice is wooden with carved ornaments in the form of garlands and dentils. The asphalt shingle roof is topped with a balustraded deck and pierced by three interior chimneys.

The form of the building is essentially that of a cube with an attached ell. A number of curved window bays, dormers and a porch which wraps from the midpoint of the South Prospect Street side to the midpoint of the College Street side break out from this cubical form.

(continued on Continuation Sheet #12)

GPO 921-724

NATIONAL REGISTER

Form 10-300a July 1960 UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 1774 NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

(Continuation Sheet) #12

| STATE | |
|------------------|------|
| Vermont | |
| COUNTY | |
| Chittende | en |
| FOR NPS USE ONLY | 1 |
| ENTRY NUMBER | DATE |
| APR 1 4 1975 | |

Section 7 (Number all entries)

REGISTER

Northwest of Alumni House, at the midpoint of that Group III: section of South Prospect Street which faces the Green, and facing University row, is Waterman, the University's main administrative building. A very large, two-and-a-half story, brick, Colonial Revival structure, Waterman's composition consists of a principle rectangular unit with a central pavilion, extended on both sides by a pair of short symmetrical wings which intersect with a pair of projecting pavilions. In plan the building would resemble a stubby H except that the projecting central pavilion in front (east) and its counterpart, a projecting pavilion with a one story rounded bay, interrupt the cross bar at midpoint.

Waterman's detailing, materials and basic forms relate it strongly to its neighbors to the south, Alumni House and Wheeler House. Its designers - the firm of McKin, Meade and White - must have taken these two buildings into account when they designed Waterman in 1941. The building relates to its northern neighbors at the corner of the Green, DeGoesbriand Hospital on the southwest corner of South Prospect and Colchester (Pearl) and John Dewey Hall on the northeast corner in size, scale and materials.

Sandwiched between the large forms of Waterman and DeGoesbriand, two of the domestic structures which, like Alumni House, once lined South Prospect remain. The Math Building (41 South Prospect) which sits next door to Waterman was once quite similar to its neighbor to the north, the Sociology Building. Both are 1810 to 1820, two-and-a-half story, five bay frame houses set with their long axis parallel to the road. However, at some point in the 1880's or 1890's the Math Building was stylistically updated, greatly enlarged, and became a two family house. Today, it appears that the original house intersects a three-and-a-half story gable end to the road structure at the ridge line of the roof. On the front of the building, a pair of two story window bays supporting pediments on brackets were added to either side of the first floor porch sheltering the pair of doors. This porch is surmounted by a second, somewhat smaller porch with a smaller ornamented pediment. A fourth pediment, also ornately carved, rises above and behind this one in the roof gable of the addition. This rich carving, found in all four pediments, plays against the patterned scroll work of the porches. Unfortunately, the equally rich and varied shingling - a wave pattern on the bays, scallops in the highest front pediment and the pediment and sides of the supports of the whimsical gable balcony in the rear - and its interplay with the other patterns and textures was lost in 1974 when the house and its shingles were covered with aluminum siding. Fortunately, the pediment and porches were not covered.

(continued on Continuation Sheet #13)

RECEIVED orm 10-300a (July 1969) 1 1974

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATION NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

(Continuation Sheet) #13

| STATE | |
|-----------------|------|
| Vermont | |
| COUNTY | |
| Chitten | den |
| FOR NPS USE ONL | Y |
| ENTRY NUMBER | DATE |
| 1/50 1 4 600 C | |

Section. (Number all entries)

REGISTER

Next door, the Sociology Building has retained more of its early 19th century character. A two story enclosed porch extends the building's basic rectangular form on the north end, and a one story enclosed porch extends it to the south. The half crescent windows flanking the interior and chimneys as they pass through each gable are similar to those on the Math building. The semicircular fanlight has remained above the central front door which is sheltered by a pedimented porch supported by two freestanding columns.

The Sociology building's neighbor to the north, the Baird Institute Center for Disorders of Communications (DeGoesbriand Hospital Building) is as large and overpowering in comparison as the Math building's neighbor to the south, Waterman. Like Waterman, Baird's design is based on three projecting pavilions linked by wings which are parallel to the road. Baird's pavilions are shallower than those at Waterman. Only the central one extends into an ell in the rear.

The building was constructed in 1925 as the Bishop DeGoesbriand Hospital. Behind and above the one story brick and granite porch which was added to the central doorway at a later date, one can still see the original name carved in granite. Today it is part of the larger DeGoesbriand Hospital complex that has grown up behind it.

Directly across Pearl (Colchester) Street from one of the hospital's newer units is one of Burlington's finest early homes, the Moore-Woodbury House (416 Pearl Street). Built about 1815, this elegantly proportioned brick house sits long axis parallel to the road on a stone foundation. Its plan is that of a rectangle with a large ell off the rear. Two late 19th century additions - an oriel window on the eastern end wall and a two story wood porch on the western end wall, which may have replaced an earlier porch, break out of the rectangular format.

The central bay which Five bays span the front of the structure. contains the door is treated as a pavilion and is topped with its own arched roof. Granite stairs with inverted brackets at the level of the landing lead up to the pavilion and to a pair of carved paneled doors surmounted by a large granite lintel. flat roofed porch supported by heavy, carved wooden brackets in turn supports a fenced balcony onto which the second floor French doors open. These doors are finished at the top with a light in the form of a segmental arch. A marble hoodmould surmounts the French doors.

(continued on Continuation Sheet #14)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NOV 1 1973 NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

(Continuation Sheet) #74

| STATE | |
|-----------------|------|
| Vermont | |
| COUNTY | |
| Chittender | 1 |
| FOR NPS USE ONL | Υ |
| ENTRY NUMBER | DATE |
| FPR 1 4 1975 | |

Section 7 (Number all entries)

MATIONAL

REGISTER

The hoodmould, the door, the brackets above and below the door and those which were along the raised brick cornice until they were removed in 1972 were added at a later date, perhaps in 1886 when Urban A. Woodbury purchased the house. The first and second floor windows with their plain stone sills and flush headers are more indicative of the house's original appearance. At the cornice level where the brick is raised, four quarter windows are tucked beneath the eaves of the low hip roof. The contour of the roof's overhang appears to have been altered. A second hip roof with a flattened peak surmounts the asphalt shingle surface of the first. Four interior end chimneys must have once been visible in the roof of the main block of the structure. Today, two are visible - the left front chimney with its corbelled top and a smaller right rear chimney. Neither are original.

The Moore-Woodbury House is as outstanding for its historical associations as for its architecture. From 1886 well into the 20th century it was the home of Urban Woodbury, Mayor of Burlington and Governor of Vermont. A bronze plaque on the front of the building records that during Woodbury's tenancy three Presidents of the United States were entertained in the home: William McKinley in 1897; Theodore Roosevelt in 1902; and William H. Taft in 1900. Today the building is divided into apartments.

Adjacent to the Moore-Woodbury House, on the corner of Colchester (Pearl) and Prospect, is the Lamda Iota Fraternity House. Like its neighbor, Lamda Iota is a two-and-a-half story brick structure with its long axis parallel to the road. Its general style would best be described as Colonial Revival. It was constructed in 1913.

The building is dominated by a two story colonaded portico which spans the entire seven bay front. Eight Doric columns support the roof. Behind these columns, the tall, granite silled, 4/6 windows of the first floor flank a very large central doorway with a transom light. Above the full portico, three rounded dormers break out of the pitched roof.

On the east and west end walls of the building are huge double end chimneys with the spaces between each pair infilled. These dominate the profile of the structure. At the first floor level of these end walls are one story porches supported by triple Doric columns; on the second floor are large arched windows with shallow balustraded balconies. At this level, the eaves on either side of the chimney are filled with stone.

(continued on Continuation Sheet #15)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

| STATE | |
|-----------------|------|
| Vermont | |
| COUNTY | |
| Chittenden | |
| FOR NPS USE ONL | Υ |
| ENTRY NUMBER | DATE |
| 708 1 4 1975 | |

Section 7

(Continuation Sheet)

#15

(Number all entries)

Lamda Iota's neighbor to the east, John Dewey Hall, occupies the northeast corner of the Colchester (Pearl) and Prospect Street intersection at the northern head of the Green. A large rectangular brick building, three stories above the water table and a full story below, its size and scale relate it more closely to the Baird (DeGoesbriand) building and Waterman than to its other neighbors. Like these others, it is a horizontal building with its long axis parallel to the road. Like the others, it has a central, projecting pavilion containing the entranceway. At Dewey Hall a two story porch rises on two Ionic columns in front of the door. Above the porch, on the third floor of the pavilion, is a granite plaque carved with "University of Vermont, College of Medicine 1825 1905." Square windows with a crisscross pattern flank the plaque.

When the building was erected in 1905, it served as the medical college. Its original purpose was, no doubt, partly responsible for the structure's size and scale. Today, it houses the Psychology Department.

To the northeast of John Dewey, at <u>2 Colchester Avenue</u>, is a three story, six bay wide, two bay deep frame house and ell on a rubble foundation. An asphalt shingle hip roof with a three bay shed dormer centered on the front caps the structure. A single, off-centered interior chimney pierces this roof. The four central bays of the structure are framed by a one story porch with plain wooden columns, railings and stickwork.

This structure has long claimed to be the oldest frame house in Burlington, erected in 1789. It would seem more likely that some part of it was built in 1789, but that the main body of the building is of a somewhat later date. The University acquired and remodelled the building in 1915. Today it houses Special Education.

Next door to the east, across Colchester Avenue from Mansfield House is the last building fully visible from the Green. It is a tall, three-and-a-half story, gable front, frame building with a tower intersecting its southwest corner. A two story porch with wooden railings and scroll work at the top of the columns screens the entire three bay span of the front of the building. This structure provides a fine, vertically oriented visual boundary for the Green District.

REGISTER

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

| STATE | |
|-----------------|--------------|
| COUNTY | |
| FOR NPS USE ONL | .Υ |
| ENTRY NUMBER | DATE |
| ADD | 1 / 1975 |

Section 7

Burlington.

(Continuation Sheet) Page 16

(Number all entries)

Located on the southwest corner of Summer and Main Streets is "Grassmount," a 2½-story, Federal style house of brick load bearing construction with a hip roof, roof balustrade, cupola, paired interior chimney stacks, and an elaborate facade five bays across. Erected in 1804 by Thaddeus Tuttle, "Grassmount" was later the residence of Cornelius P. Van Ness, Governor of Vermont from 1823 to 1826. "Grassmount" is one of the finest and most elaborate examples of a large Adamesque-Federal style mansion in Vermont and is one of the outstanding landmarks in the architecturally and stylistically rich University district of the city of

"Grassmount" was entered on the National Register of Historic Places on April 11, 1973.



UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

| STATE Vermont | |
|-----------------|------|
| COUNTY | |
| Chittend | en |
| FOR NPS USE ONL | Υ |
| ENTRY NUMBER | DATE |
| 1965 T 7 13/2 | |

Section 8

(Continuation Sheet)

#17

(Number all entries)

Finally the district is significant as a resource to the University and to the City. The buildings function as a visual testimony of the University's history. For example, Billings, Williams Science Hall, Mansfield House and 479 and 481 Main are the architectural scorecard for a rivalry between three alumni from Woodstock. At various times, in various ways, the district has played an important role in the social history of Burlington. In the early 19th century the Green itself served as a public common. Local citizens contributed toward the building of Pomeroy as a medical school in 1829. For many years the Old Gym served as Burlington's civic center. Today the hospital brings people from the entire northwestern Vermont/upstate New York region to the Green area. Similarly, lectures, concerts and plays at the Chapel and Billings attract a great many people from the greater Burlington area to the Green District.

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

| STATE | |
|-----------------|------|
| Vermont | |
| COUNTY | |
| Chittende | en |
| FOR NPS USE ONL | Υ |
| ENTRY NUMBER 07 | DATE |
| TOTAL TENDE | |

| _Section | 11 |
|--------------------|----|
| (Number all entrie | s) |

(Continuation Sheet)

NATIONAL REGISTER

The district boundary description was prepared by H. G. Abbott for the Administrative Resources Department of the University of Vermont.

| | Cyni | c, University volumes. | of Vermor | nt ne | ws | spaper | , Bur | lingto | on, Vt., 1 | numerou | s |
|-------|--------------|---|---------------------------------------|-------|-----|---------------|------------|-------------------|--------------------|-------------|-------------------------|
| | <u> Hill</u> | 's Notes, The | Universit | y of | _V | <i>dermon</i> | t Bui | ldings | s 1800 - 19 | 47, 194 | 7,3 |
| | | Burlington, I ica, Joan Bair | University | of ' | ۷e | ermont | Arch | ives. | | | 1 |
| | | published man | nuscript, | Univ | er | sity | of Ve: | rmont | Archives | | S . |
| | Verm | ont Alumni Mag | gazine, Bu | ırlin | gt | on, V | t., n | umerou | us volume: | s. | 0/7- |
| | | | | | | | | | | | 100 |
| 16 | . GEOGI | RAPHICAL DATA | | | | | | | | | 1 |
| | | ATITUDE AND LONGITUING A RECTANGLE LOC | | - | 0 | | NING THE | CENTER | POINT OF A PRO | | 96 |
| | CORNER | LATITUDE | LONGITUD |)E | R | | ATITUDE | | N TEN ACRES | UDE | $\frac{\omega}{\omega}$ |
| | NW | Degrees Minutes Seconds 44 ° 28, 54, | Degrees Minutes | | | Degrees | Minutes | Seconds | Degrees Minute | es Seconds | 5/:3 |
| | NE | 44 0 28 54 | 73° 11' | 47 - | | | • , | | Ü | | 0 |
| | S E SW | 44 ° 28 24 ° 44 ° 28 ° 24 ° | 73° 11' | ' 1 | | | | | | | 1301 |
| | APPROXI | MATE ACREAGE OF NOM | | | 5.8 | acre | | | | | S |
| | STATE: | STATES AND COUNTIES | FOR PROPERTI | CODE | _ | COUNTY | ATE OR C | OUNIY BO | DUNDARIES | CODE | ш |
| | STATE: | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | CODE | 1 | COUNTY: | | | | CODE | ш |
| | SIAIE: | | | CODE | ┤` | COUNTY | | | | CODE | _ |
| | STATE: | • | | CODE | 7 | COUNTY: | | | | CODE | Z |
| | STATE: | <u> </u> | | CODE | +, | COUNTY: | · | | | CODE | - |
| | -24 | | | |] | | | | | | ਹ |
|) (LI | | PREPARED BY D TITLE: | - , | | | | | | | | |
| | Louis | se B. Roomet, | Researche | er; C | he | ster | H. Lie | ebs, <i>[</i> | ssistant | Directo | pr - |
| | Histo | oric Sites Div | vision | | | | | | 10/24/ | 74 | - |
| | STREET | and Number: lion Building | | | | | | | , | | 0 z |
| | CITY OR | TOWN: | | | 5 | TATE | | | | CODE | 5 |
| 112 | | oelier Liaison officer Cl | ERTIFICATION | | | Ň | | cmont REGIST | ER VERIFICAT | 50 ION | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | 1 |
| | l . | designated State Liais | | | | I hereby | certify th | nat this p | roperty is includ | led in the | |
| | l | Historic Preservation A), I hereby nominate thi | | | | | 1 Register | | | | |
| | 1 | National Register and c | | | | | (D) | . (10) 3 | louis | | |
| | | ited according to the cri by the National Park Ser | | | | | est u | | | | |
| | level o | of significance of this n | omination is: | | | Director, | Office of | Archeology / 1 | and Historic Pre | servation | |
| | N | ational State | Local | با | | _ | 4 | 14/4 | | | |
| | Name | Willia D | . Time | 11 | | Date | 111 | | | | |
| | | | | 1/ | | ATTES | Γ: / | | | _ | |
| | Title | | | | | | | A)X | on of | | |
| | 1 | State Histor: | | | n | | Keepe | TO THE I | Vational Registe | | |
| | | Officer | /08 /7 Ji | | | Tinte | | HPK 1 | 1975 | • | |

9. MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

| ☐ 15th Century | ☐ 16th Century ☐ 17th Century | ▼ 18th Century ▼ 19th Century | ▼ 20th Century |
|--|---|---|--|
| SPECIFIC DATE(S) (If Applical | ole and Known) | | |
| AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Ch | eck One or More as Appropr | iate) | |
| Abor iginal | 🔀 Education | Political | 👿 Urban Planning |
| Prehistoric | Engineering | Religion/Phi- | Other (Specify) |
| Historic | Industry | · losophy | |
| Agriculture | Invention | Science | |
| | 🛣 Landscape | Sculpture | |
| ☐ Art | Architecture | Social/Human- | |
| Commerce | Literature | itarian | |
| Communications | ☐ Military | Theater | |
| Conservation | ☐ Music | Transportation | |
| TATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE | : | | |
| 1801 letter of p | | u are about to e | rect buildings |
| | | appropriated fo | |
| | | n to the conveni | |
| | | ty of Vermont." | , |
| | | stablishment of | a central nark |
| plan. Because t this large area multi-faceted. | the University with its many | structures, its | a central park District encompas significance is s exactly as Alle |
| plan. Because to this large area multi-faceted. hoped it would. Architecturally, visual coherence size and styles. row," the Pump How Woodbury House Within the format structures become the "University and at the crest | the University with its many Overall, however the district it achieves of A number of touse, Pomeroy could rest state of a district e even more in row" group, state of Burlington only structure | Green Historic structures, its ver, it function is invaluable a despite the disp the buildings - Hall, Wheeler Himply on the meret these architemportant. A qualtuated on the en's hill, form t | District encompas significance is |

(continued on Continuation Sheet #16)

Form No. 10-300a (Rev. 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

FOR NPS USE ONLY

RECEIVEDAPR 1 1 1975

DATE ENTERED 2 8 1975

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

CONTINUATION SHEET

ITEM NUMBER 9

PAGE 1

- Haskins, Harold W. A History of Bradford, Vermont. Littleton, New Hampshire: Courier Printing Co., 1968.
- McKeen, Silas. A History of Bradford, Vermont. Montpelier, Vermont: J. D. Clark and Son, 1875.
- Personal interviews with Harold W. Haskins, Bradford, Vermont on 17-18 March 1975.

Form No. 10-300a (Rev. 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

FOR NPS USE ONLY

RECEIVED A 1975

DATE ENTERED WAY 2 8 1975

CONTINUATION SHEET

ITEM NUMBER 10 PAGE 1

thence southeasterly along the centerline of Hardy Brook to the Depot Street bridge at Point C; thence easterly along the centerline of Depot Street and an extension thereof to an intersection with the centerline of the Boston and Maine Railroad track at Point D; thence southerly along the centerline of the Boston and Main Railroad track to an intersection with the line of the prominent escarpment south of the Waits River at Point E; thence southwesterly along the upper edge of the escarpment to an intersection with the centerline of U.S. Route 5 at Point F; thence westerly to an intersection with the centerline of South Main Street at Point G, 400 feet south of the intersection of the centerlines of South Main Street and Cobblestone Alley; thence westerly along the south property line of House #71 to the southwest corner of the property at Point H; thence northerly along the west property lines of House #71 and contiguous buildings fronting on the west side of South Main Street to Point I, 250 feet south of Goshen Road; thence westerly to an intersection with the centerline of South Pleasant Street at Point J, 250 feet south of the intersection of the centerlines of South Pleasant Street and Goshen Road; thence northerly along the centerline of South Pleasant Street to an intersection with the south property line of House #73 at Point K; thence westerly along the south property line of House #73 and an extension thereof to an intersection with the centerline of High Street at Point L; thence northerly along the centerline of High Street to the intersection of the centerlines of High Street and Goshen Road at Point M; thence easterly along the centerline of Goshen Road to an intersection with the west property line of House #77; thence northerly along the west property lines of House #77 and contiguous buildings fronting the west side of North Pleasant Street to the northwest property corner of House #81 at Point O; thence easterly along the north property line of House #81 to an intersection with the centerline of North Pleasant Street at Point P; thence northerly along the centerline of North Pleasant Street to the point of beginning.



